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  INTRODUCTION


  
    The first nucleus of the Ortona Diocesan Museum collection was collected in the first post-war period in order to preserve and protect the many and valuable artworks from the 12th to the 19th centuries coming from the Cathedral and other worship places in the territory, after escaping the bombing destruction suffered by the City of Ortona during the second world war.
  


  
    

  


  
    On May 3rd 1980, in occasion of the solemn celebrations for Saint Thomas the Apostle’s ‘perdono’ festival, the structure was opened as Museum of the Cathedral and only after subsequent works of restoration and reorganization, in 2003 it was recognised as a branch of the Lanciano –Ortona Diocesan Museum.
  


  
    

  


  
    The pieces kept here, exhibited in three large areas that, in the past centuries, used to be occupied by three Chapels connected to the main church, represent in a peculiar way the artistic and cultural level reached by Ortona in the course of its history; but above all, they actually testify to the will to defend and protect one’s own cultural heritage to the advantage of future generations, even in the most terrible disasters as the destruction the City underwent in December 1943.
  


  
    

  


  FIRST ROOM CHAPEL OF THE ROSARY


  [image: Ingresso]


  
    The exhibition itinerary in the first room, formerly seat of the Chapel of the Rosary, develops along a chronological criterion with masterpieces of the painting art from the 15th to the 17th centuries.
  


  
    

  


  
    The combination of the paintings is really significant with masterpieces such as "Il Volto Santo di Lucca e il miracolo del giullare", and the almost contemporary "Madonna col puer dolorosus". Some very historically important paintings are the complex composition of Adorazione dei pastori, dated to 1581, and the pieces by the 17th century Ortonese painter Tommaso Alessandrino, and those ones referred to Giovan Battista Spinelli, born in Chieti at the beginning of the 18th century and whose father was from Bergamo.
  


  
    1.1 Unknown artist from Abruzzo, 15th century, Madonna col Puer Dolorosus, about 1440, tempera on table, coming from the Chapel of the Saviour in the Cathedral

  


  [image: res_1.1 Madonna col Puer Dolorosus]


  
    The piece, which is rather uncommon in its iconography since it portrays the Child- showing the signs of the Passion- on the Virgin’s lap, is among the few ones made before the sack of the City by Turks led by Piyale Pasha in 1566.

  


  
    

  


  
    The painting, probably part of a polyptych and originally larger in dimensions, shows many similarities with the table of Our Lady of the Milk in the Church of Santa Maria in Platea in Campli, both for the flowered carpet the throne of the Lady is on, and for the drawing of the eyes and the representation of the fabric design and of the folds of the dress, arranged on the lap in plissé undulations. Formerly referred to Giacomo from Campli, more recent studies have connected it to the circle of Francesco d'Antonio Zacchi from Viterbo whose nickname was ‘Il Balletta’, chronicled between 1407 and 1476.
  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    1.2 Unknown artist, Il Volto Santo di Lucca e il miracolo del giullare, 15th cent., Tempera on table, coming from the Chapel of the Saviour in the Cathedral

  


  [image: res_1.2 Volto Santo di Lucca-dettaglio]


  
    The large painting on table portraying the Holy Face from Lucca, still included in the wonderful altar dossal in gilded wood datable to the second half of the 16th century, was once placed in the Chapel of the Saviour in the Cathedral, formerly Riccardi’s family chapel than ended up in the Canons’ possessions

  


  
    

  


  
    The Riccardi family , Angevins supporters, lived in Ortona between the end of 14th century and the first decades of 16th century and were very influential in the kingdom of Naples during the 15th cent., especially with Francesco I, Chamberlain, Seneschal, Castellan in Naples, Ambassador in Konstanz for the papal election of Martin V, Viceroy and Governor of Perugia from the 1408 to 1414, died in 1424. They had many feuds, in Abruzzo and outside , and they got related with remarkable and noble families.
  


  
    

  


  
    The Holy Face of Lucca, object of a widespread worship in all Europe starting from the Middle Age, is a wooden crucifix kept in the left aisle of S. Martino Cathedral in Lucca, in a little central plan temple built by Matteo Civitali in 1484. According to the old legend handed down by the deacon Leobino, the Holy Face crucifix was entirely carved by Nicodemus, after Christ’s Resurrection and Ascension, apart from the Face that was completed only thanks to divine intervention thus proving to be Christ’s “real face”. The painting shows one of the most famous miracles of the Holy Face that let his golden sandal slip into the hands of a jester in order to demonstrate his appreciation to the man that had sung for him in sign of devotion.
  


  
    

  


  
    The worship for the Holy Face can be put in relation both with Riccardis’ origin from Lucca, and with the acknowledged power of the Simulacrum of keeping invaders and pirates away.
  


  
    

  


  
    1.3 Unknown author, Adorazione dei pastori, 1581, oil on canvas, coming from the Congregation of the Augustinians

  


  [image: res_1.3 Nativita]


  
    The painting, arranged according to a vertical space perspective in which different characters crowd around the main scene, while on the background detailed landscape we can see a very long procession, seems to have been painted by the same painter of the Annunciation, dated to 1583, placed in Santa Maria di Costantinopoli Church but probably coming from the Church of Annunziata in Porta Caldari that hosted Celestinians after the pirates’ raid in 1566. In the past the author had been identified with the Venetian painter Giovan Battista Rusconi, but this attribution seems obsolete nowadays even if it hasn’t been possible to refer the two pieces to any other artist’s catalogue, although the presumed author seems to reveal Marchigian influences close to Lorenzo Lotto, while the narrative and figurative tone would connect him to Simone De Magistris and Bartolomeo Morgante.
  


  



  



  



  1.5 Unknown author, Deposizione dalla Croce, about 1590, oil on canvas.


  [image: res_1.5 Deposizione dalla Croce]


  
    The painting shows the evident signs of the vicissitudes it must have been involved in, in particular the extensive colour losses in correspondence to old folds in the canvas that had been deprived of the frame. Even if it has been in part compromised by these rather extensive blanks its reading reveals, according to the experts, the personality of an artist who trained in the Tuscan-Roman area but was influenced by Marchigian artists. With its deep expressivity and the sense of pity that comes out, the subject is perfectly in line with the counter-reformation painting and follows widespread models and in particular the Ortonese work seems to derive from the “Deposizione” by Daniel from Volterra. At the foot of the cross it’s worth noting the presence of Saint Francis that would connect its assignment to the Minorite area.

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    



    1.6 Tommaso Alessandrino, Pietà di Chioggia o Apparizione della Madonna della Navicella, 1629, oil on canvas. Coming from Santissima Trinità Church in Ortona.

  


  [image: res_1.6 Tommaso Alessandrino Pieta]


  
    The work commissioned by Cesare Gervasone, the member of a rich family from Bergamo settled in Ortona and who is portrayed in prayer at the bottom and identified with the same emblem appearing on the following piece, is very interesting from an iconographic point of view. The subject is the Apparition of the Virgin of the Small Boat so called because on 25th of June 1508, the Lady of Sorrows appeared to the greengrocer Baldassarre Zalon (DA BALDESARSE VISTO IL GRAN MERTO DI CRISTO), near the beach of Sottomarina di Chioggia (ECCOVI CHIOZA A PIENO DELLA PIETADE IL SENO), holding Christ -plagued for the sins of Chioggia people -in her lap, and then disappeared on a small boat with no boatman.

  


  
    

  


  
    At the top, very recognizable, there is Venice with Saint Mark square with Saint George Island and, in an exceptional representation, the Bucentaur.
  


  
    

  


  
    The painting, signed and dated THOMAS ALESSANDRINUS ORTONIENSIS IN PINGEBAT A. D. MDCXXVIIII, was made only some decades after the completion of the Sanctuary in 1585 and its becoming a point of reference for the Capuchin community.
  


  
    

  


  
    1.7 Tommaso Alessandrino, I tre regni dell’oltretomba o Giudizio Universale, 1631, oil on canvas, coming from Santissima Trinità Church in Ortona.

  


  [image: res_1.7 Tommaso Alessandrino I tre regni oltretomba]


  
    As the previous one also this piece was commissioned by Cesare Gervasone, as shown in one of the many inscriptions on the painting, the one placed just below the emblem on the right, is very complex from the iconographic point of view. It shows the Doomsday. On the vertical axis there are, in sequence from bottom to top, Satan, Archangel Michel, Saint Francis embracing the Cross, Christ between the Virgin and Saint John, the Dove of the Holy Spirit and God the Father among the celestial spheres and the angels choruses; under them we can see those who had died before the coming of the Saviour and the Apostles. On a lower level the Saints and, still lower, at the sides of the cross, the angels with the symbols of the passion. All the lower half is instead dedicated to the earth dimension, crowded with many other figures and animated by the movements of the bodies, attracted by the higher level or thrown away toward the abyss of eternal damnation.

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    1.8 Tommaso Alessandrino, Assunzione di Maria, 1627, oil on canvas, coming from Santissima Trinità Church in Ortona.
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    Besides being an evident tribute to the Virgin who, at the end of her life was moved to Heaven both in her soul and her body, the painting also represents a reference to an episode that the tradition refers to the Apostle Thomas who doubted, even in this case, about the actual ascent of the Virgin in Heaven and for this reason she let her belt fall from the sky, and the belt became one of the iconographic attribute Thomas would be subsequently identified with, together with the square ruler. The author was born in Ortona in 1570 and worked mainly in his home town even if we have news about his activity in Caldari , Crecchio and Lanciano where he painted a Piety for the Saint Bartholomew capuchin convent, that is currently among the deposits of the Diocesan museum, and the Last Supper, formerly in the Annunziata Cathedral and now on the Altar of the Blessed Sacrament in Madonna del Ponte Cathedral. Tommaso Alessandrino died in June, 1640.

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    1.9 Tommaso Alessandrino, San Bernardo di Chiaravalle e il Miracolo del Latte, 1632, oil on canvas. Coming from Santissima Trinità Church in Ortona.

  


  [image: res_1.9 Tommaso Alessandrino San Bernardo di Chiaravalle e il Miracolo del Latte]


  
    The author has used a widespread iconographical model referring to an episode of the life of Saint Bernard, lived between 1190 and 1153, who founded the famous Clairvaux Abbey. It’s said that when Bernard was concentrated on writing the commentary to the Song of Songs, that praises the Virgin, she appeared and the milk come out from her breast dropped on the author’s lips who, from that moment, got the gift of an extraordinary eloquence. Saint Bernard, a central figure in the worship of the Virgin, developed three central themes of Mariology, taken from Pope Pius XII’s encyclical letter written in 1953, in occasion of the 8th centenary of the Saint’s death, explaining Mary’s virginity, “Star of the Sea”, how to pray the Virgin and how to rely on Mary as mediator. Even in this painting we can see, even if not perfectly readable, the donator’s emblem.

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    1.10 Giovan Battista Spinellli, San Luigi, San Cristoforo e San Pietro, second quarter of the 17th century, oil on canvas. Coming from Chiesa del Carmine.

  


  [image: res_1.10 San Luigi san Cristoforo e San Pietro]


  
    Giovanni Battista Spinelli was born in Chieti in 1613 from Sante Spinelli, a rich merchant originating from Bergamo. He moved to Naples around 1630 and had the possibility to come in contact with the artistic climate of the capital city and in particular with Massimo Stanzione with whom he painted “Gesù fra i dottori” for the Neapolitan Chiesa dell’Annunziata. One of his sister Catherine married the baron Ludovico de Pizzis from Ortona. He died in Ortona on 20th November even if recent studies have supposed he was still alive in 1658. His works, that can be found in many areas of Abruzzo, Campania and Calabria, in churches and private collections, are characterized by singular composition patterns, by a personal chromatic sensitivity and by the nervous movement of the gestures and of the shapes of the figures. His figure of artist has been studied and reevaluated only in relatively recent years and this has contributed to his legitimate admission among the masters of Neapolitan painting of the 17th century.

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    1.11 Abruzzo area of interest, Incoronazione di Maria Vergine tra S. Francesco e S. Antonio di Padova, second quarter of 17th century, oil on canvas. Coming from Santissima Trinità Church in Ortona.
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    The work, central part of a triptych with Saint Simon Zelotes and Saint Bartholomew, was placed on the wooden altar of the capuchin church of Santissima Trinità below a painting showing God the Father, from where it has been only recently removed in order to be restored. The construction of the convent of the Capuchin Friars started in 1629, as chronicled in documents and on the inscription on the church portal, and its consecration took place in 1645 by the Bishop Alessandro Crescenzi. According to what has been handed down by the historian Filippo from Tussio, the main altar with the complex wooden tabernacle, realized by the skilled Capuchin cabinet-makers, was made in 1745 when Giuseppe from Ascoli was the monastery warden and follows really widespread models in the Abruzzo convents of the same order. After the suppression of the convent in the Napoleonic period, the area was subsequently committed to host the cemetery and the Church was turned into cemetery chapel. The alter piece, with the paintings around, had already been connected to the production area of Giovan Battista Spinelli, but recent studies have doubted its paternity, besides considering it piece of a contemporary author.

  


  
    

  


  1.12 Abruzzo area of interest, Commemorative stone, 1127, carved stone. Coming from the Cathedral.
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    The commemorative stone is an important document whose inscription testify to the reconstruction and reconsecration of the main church of Ortona to Divine Mary on 10th November 1127, after the destruction of the previous worship place. More than one hundred years later with the arrival in Ortona of Saint Thomas’ relics, the church was further transformed becoming, over time, the wonderful place of worship of the Apostle, but keeping the double title over the centuries.

  


  
    

  


  SECOND ROOM - CHAPEL OF THE BAPTISTERY


  
    The second room of the museum is divided in two different sections: in the first one there is the continuation of the chronological itinerary in the Ortonese figurative art from the 18th century paintings by Giambattista Gamba, dedicated to Saint Catherine of Alexandria’s life, to the two pieces portraying Saint Augustine and Saint Girolamo made in 1865 by Ferdinando Palmerio, born in Guardiagrele in 1834 and died in 1916, going through the painting titled L’incredulità di San Tommaso by Giuseppe Lamberti ,1731.
  


  
    

  


  
    Lamberti’s work represents a point of contact with the second section hosted under the broad vaulted space datable to 1330, where we can find instead those works that better represent the history of Ortonese Diocese and those objects connected to the Liturgical functions in the Cathedral and to the veneration of the Apostle Thomas starting with the baptismal font made of stone, perfectly conserved, created for Mons. Giandomenico Rebiba, first Bishop of Ortona from 1570 to 1596. From the period of his successor, Alessandro Boccabarili, coming from a noble family in Piacenza and formerly Chamberlain of Margaret of Austria, we have many pieces that make the sector of silver important with a precious chalice from 1608, a refined incense burner and a large basil with his emblems that, unusually in the diocesan area of interest, shows the seals of a Venetian silversmith. Samples of the following centuries that escaped the requisitions of the end of 18th century and the horrors of the was, are instead many other valuable objects among which the Altar cross made by the Neapolitan silversmith Filippo del Giudice in 1756.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.1 Giambattista Gamba, Matrimonio mistico di Santa Caterina, 18th cent., oil on canvas, coming from Santa Caterina Church.

  


  [image: res_2.1]


  
    The four paintings showing episodes of Saint Catherine’s life have been referred to the painter Gianbattista Gamba who, in the first half of 18th century decorated many churches in Abruzzo as Santa Caterina d'Alessandria Church and the Annunziata in Sulmona where in 1728 he signed the wall paintings, Santa Maria del Colle in Pescocostanzo, and the Santissima Trinità in Popoli,

  


  
    

  


  
    The scene portrayed in the painting actually refers, with an evident overlapping, to an episode of Saint Catherine from Siena’s life, lived in the 14th century who, on the night of carnival of 1347 had an apparition of Christ the Child, with the Virgin and a crowd of Saints, who gave her a ring as symbol of the mystical marriage.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.2 Giambattista Gamba, Disputa di Santa Caterina, 18th century, oil on canvas, coming from Santa Caterina Church.

  


  [image: res_2.2]


  
    Among the rather fantastic episodes of Saint Catherine’s life, who must have lived in the 4th century, there is a main one datable to 305 A.D., according to which in occasion of Massimino Daia’s designation to Governor of Egypt and Syria they organised great celebrations which also included the sacrifice of animals to pagan divinities by all the subjects. Catherine, being Christian, refused to offer sacrifices to false divinities and went to Massimino inviting him to recognize Jesus Christ. Thus, Massimino summoned up a group of Alexandrian scholar to convince the Saint to worship the Olympus Gods but the meeting ended up in the scholars’ conversion to the new faith.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.3 Giambattista Gamba, I sapienti condotti al martirio, 18th cent. Oil on canvas, coming from Santa Caterina Church.
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    Disappointed by the scholars’ conversion, Massimino gave the order to kill them, as can be actually seen in the scene portrayed in the painting. Subsequently he would propose Catherine to marry him but, since she refused, he sentenced her to a terrible death, with a wheel that would tear her flash apart.

  


  
    

  


  
    Miraculously the wheel went to pieces and the young Catherine underwent the martyrdom of decapitation. The angels then moved her body to Alessandria up to Mount Sinai where the high ground near Gebel muse, Moses’ mountain, is still called Gebel Katherin in her memory.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.4 Giambattista Gamba, Incoronazione di Santa Caterina, 18th cent., oil on canvas, coming from Santa Caterina Church.
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    According to what the tradition about Saint Catherine of Alessandria has passed on, it’s difficult to distinguish historical reality from popular legends so that the same Catholic Church has had doubts about is and, between 1962 and 2002, she was excluded from the martyrology, notwithstanding the Vatican’s permission to keep celebrating her memory day.

  


  
    

  


  
    The scene of the painting seems to take place in a dark prison where, according to a legend, the Saint was locked in and kept before the martyrdom for a long time without anything to eat or drink, but a white dove would fly to her, bringing what she needed, so that when she was freed she showed no signs of suffering even if she is portrayed while receiving a crown from the hands of an angel.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.5 Giuseppe Lamberti , The incredulity of Saint Thomas, 1731, oil on canvas coming from the Cathedral.
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    The piece was commissioned to the painter Giuseppe Lamberti , born in Ferrara around 1700 and died in 1763, by the City of Ortona as ex-voto for the avoided plague of 1731.

  


  
    

  


  
    We have only few works referred to this painter, who worked in Abruzzo and painted works placed in the churches of Guardiagrele, Penne and Lanciano where there is a painting coming from the cathedral and portraying the Coronation of the Virgin. The scene represents the moment the Apostle Thomas’ finger lightly touches the wounds of Christ Resurrected. According to a tradition in Abruzzo, handed down by Gennaro Finamore, Thomas the Apostle was blind and this is why he needed to touch the body of the Saviour, in order to be able to recognise him.
  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  2.6 Lombardos’ workshop, Sbarco delle reliquie di San Tommaso ad Ortona, 16th cent., carved stone, coming from the Cathedral.
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    The piece, generally referred to the Venetian workshop of Lombardos, a family of remarkable silversmiths, portrays the arrival of Saint Thomas’ relics on the island of Scio, where they were taken by the navarch Leone ( later called Acciaiuoli), together with the gravestone testifying to their authenticity, and brought to Ortona, his hometown, in 1258. It was part of the ark that kept Saint Thomas‘ relics after the profanation of the church led by Turks in 1566 when, according to the chronicles of that period, the holy case was destroyed but miraculously its content wasn’t damaged in any way.
  


  
    

  


  
    2.7 Abruzzo area of interest, Bust of Saint Thomas, 1799, carved and painted wood.
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    The wooden bust of the Saint Patron is among the objects that better testify to the devotion he was made object of over the centuries. It was carved in 1799 after the French invasion and, the following year, was used as model for the fusion of the wonderful silver reliquary bust made by a Neapolitan silversmith that substituted the former one of the 18th century, that had been stolen and melted together with the large emerald cross that decorated its breast.

  


  
    

  


  THIRD ROOM


  
    The third room is a small area of connection between the former Chapel of the Baptistery and the one dedicated to Saint Onuphrius . It exhibits the works of Pasquale Bellonio, an Ortonese artist of the 18th century. “San Tommaso d’Aquino e San Vincenzo Ferrer davanti al Crocifisso San Domenico Maggiore”, comes from San Domenico Church, currently seat for the Diocesan library, while “L’estasi di Santa Teresa”, was originally placed in the Chiesa del Carmine.
  


  
    

  


  3.1 Pasquale Bellonio, Nativity of the Virgin, 1780, coming from San Domenico Church in Ortona.


  
    [image: res_3.1 Nativita della Vergine (Pasquale Bellonio)]Pasquale Bellonio was born in Ortona in 1698. He worked in Ortona and other cities of Chieti province. Many of his paintings are kept in the Diocesan Museum of Lanciano. In the land register of 1751 he results to be the only Ortonese to be registered as painter. Even if he isn’t particularly remarkable for his abilities in the painting field, he had for sure a lot of commissions and he is significant for his mastery in the iconographical connotation of the figures of the Virgin and the Saints. In the Cathedral, within Saint Thomas’ Chapel , there is another work of his, a painting portraying the Crucifixion dated to 1762.
  


  
    

  


  FOURTH ROOM - SAINT ONUPHIUS' CHAPEL


  
    In this last room of the museum drawn from the Chapel dedicated to Saint Onuphius, formerly private chapel of De Sanctis family as shown by the two funeral monuments still in the room, there are a lot of testimonies to centuries of Ortonese History, archaeological finds of the Roman period and stone elements of the old Cathedral, together with an extraordinary numismatics collection.
  


  
    4.1 Emblem of the City of Ortona, carved stone, 1791.
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    The emblem of Ortona City shows a tower, a bit different in this sample from the most popular one that in heraldic terms has been described as “al castello triturrito di rosso merlato alla guelfa e chiuso d'argento sul mare d'azzurro”. Anyway, the reference to the fortified town and to the castle dominating the port that was the most important one in Abruzzo and a fundamental port of call for the Venetian sea trades, is evident.
  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    

  


  
    4.2 Emblem of De Pizzis’ family, Carved stone, 17th cent.
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    In heraldry de Pizzis’ emblem is described as ‘troncato, inchiavato, pomato di quattro pezzi d'oro e di rosso, caricato di quattro gioghi posti in fascia, due in capo di rosso e due in punta d'oro’. The forefather of this very famous Ortonese family was Ruggero, mentioned in a commemorative stone as Ruler of Ortona in 1251.

  


  
    

  


  
    Around half of 17th century he got a lot of feuds : S. Martino, Filetto, Vacri, Rosciano and Guardiagrele, but he later kept only the ones in S. Martino and Filetto. In 1708 the title on S. Martino was upgraded from Baron’s to Marquise’s. They were the heirs of the painter Giovan Battista Spinelli since his sister Catherine had married Ludovico de Pizzis bringing him a dowry of almost 3000 ducats.
  


  
    

  


  
    Even if numerous and divided in many branches, De Pizzis family extinguished at the end of the 18th century with Antonia, who married Francesco Odoardo Benedetti, baron of Scoppito e aristocrat from L’Aquila, at the end of 18th century.
  


  
    

  


  
    The title of Marquise of di S. Martino passed to his son Giuseppe Benedetti, who settled in Ortona and had no progeny. His wife and he were the last ones to be buried in the 14th century family crypt of Immacolata Concezione in the Ortona Cathedral.
  


  
    

  


  
    4.3 Angevin emblem, carved stone, 14th cent.
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    During the Angevin period in Ortona, a particular importance was gained by Riccardi family who were as faithful to the French monarchs as the powerful Ricci family in Lanciano was faithful to Aragoneses, and this ended up in making even worse the relations between the two Frentano cities, which were already very tense for commercial reasons. Saint John from Capestrano ‘s intervention put an end, even if just temporary, to the disputes and fights between the inhabitants of the two cities: in fact on 17th February 1427 he obtained the two enemies to underwrite a peace agreement written by Cicco di Memmo of Rosato, notary in Ortona, and declared on the tomb of the Apostle Thomas.

  


  
    

  


  
    In memory of the event, in Ortona, the Madonna delle Grazie convent was started, currently no more existing, while in Lanciano the convent of Sant’Angelo della Pace, currently San Antonio, was founded; it still exists with its very rich library.
  


  
    

  


  
    With the final victory of Aragoneses in the Kingdom of Naples, Riccardis were forced to exile and they moved to Urbino, Pesaro, Modena, Mantova and Bologna. Some remarkable names of those years are Francesco Riccardi, who was also Governor and Viceroy of Perugia between 1408 and 1414, and Sigismondo Riccardi, Lord of Caprara, known as "Morello da Ortona", friend of Pietro Bembo, and mentioned in “Cortegiano" by Baldassarre Castiglione.
  


  
    

  


  
    4.5. Abruzzo area of interest, Andrea Matteo de Sanctis’ Tomb,1556, carved stone.
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    According to the historian Giovan Battista Pacichelli, De Sanctis family had its historic residence near the Cathedral on an area formerly belonged to Riccardis forced to exile after the victory of Aragoneses. The foundation of the palace can be thus dated to the 15th century even if it was certainly object of restoration interventions by Andrea Matteo De Sanctis in the first half of 16th century as it can be read in the inscription on the stone portal and as highlighted by many architectural elements, brought back to light after some restoration works, that testify to the antiquity of the building.

  


  
    

  


  
    Towards the end of the 16th century it hosted Margaret from Austria, natural daughter of the Emperor Charles II, duchess of Parma and Piacenza and governor of the Spanish Netherlands who decided to settle in Ortona, that she had obtained in 1582 by Horace de Lannoy Prince of Sulmona and Count of Venafro, as guest of Camillo de Sanctis waiting for the completion of her palace, for whose construction the famous architect Giacomo della Porta had been appointed. But she died on 18th January 1586 in De Sanctis’ palace before Farnese palace was completed.
  


  
    

  


  
    4.6 Abruzzo area of interest, Andrea de Sanctis’ Tomb, 1504
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    Andrea de Sanctis was Royal Treasurer of Abruzzo from 1423 to 1445. De Sanctis family from Ortona is chronicled from the 15th century but its members settled in different cities in Abruzzo giving life to the branch of Vasto, currenly extinguished and to the ones of Teramo, whose descendants are the De Sanctis of Castelbasso, of Canzano, of Penne and Orsetti de Sanctis.

  


  
    

  


  
    Their emblem shows a lion with a bend on which it’s possible to see three P letters, interpreted as "Pugna Pro Patria".
  


  
    

  


  
    Giovanni Agostino de Sanctis was canon and general vicar of Giovanni Domenico Rebibba, first Bishop of the Ortona Diocese.
  


  
    

  


  THE NUMISMATICS


  
    In Ortona, a state property city, there was a civic mint in activity in the period of the Angevin domination or during the attempted sallies in the Kingdom of the French supporters against the Aragona House(15th century).
  


  
    

  


  
    The periods of the mint’s activity, so far known, refer to the Kingdoms of Joanne II d’Angio (bolognino), Renato d’Angiò (dinar), John d’Angiò (dinar, bolognino), Chales VIII (cavallo). These coin collocations follow the bibliographic tradition that is not always correct.
  


  
    

  


  
    The Diocesan Museum in Saint Thomas Cathedral keeps a remarkable numismatic collection composed of more than two hundreds pieces; among these one hundred and seventy five pieces, coined over a long period of time from the Late Empire to the Unity of Italy, are exhibited in a showcase in the last room.
  


  
    

  


  
    The main nucleus of the set is characterized by the substantial presence of medieval coins made by the Ancona mint, even if there are also samples from other mints from the Middle Adriatic area to testify to a coin composition in line with the markets the Ortoneses of the Middle Age were involved with.
  


  
    

  


  
    A particular importance is given to the two very rare samples coined in Ortona mint and come to the museum collections as private donation; a dinar in mixture (gr. 0,47) in Renato d’Angiò’s name, a coin that had a very limited circulation, and a silver bolognino (gr. 0,57) in Joanne II of Durazzo’s name, slightly shorn.
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    Apart from the exposition, there are thirty four samples of lower quality coming from the last phases of the Kingdom of Naples and the Two Sicilies, between the 18th and the 19th centuries so that the total number of coins owned by the Museum reaches 209 pieces.
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